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Tawa Timeline Purpose

This is a record of some aspects of the Tawa Valley from when the landscape was born until the
third decade of the 21st century A.D./C.E.

There are around 150 entries. They range in scope through aspects such as geology, Maori use of
the valley, colonial settlement, farming, changing landscape, farming. Religion, sport, recreation,
local politics, education and many other aspects of life.

Many of the entries have a specific date. Most entries try to give a very short amount of detail so
that the entry makes sense to the reader rather than just a date and several words.

People often think of the past as similar to today. The idea behind this timeline is to try and show
that the Tawa Valley of today is not the same physical social environment that it was before and
that physical and social environment has always been evolving,

This timeline can be easily added to. If you have an entry that is relevant we can easily include,
just let us know.

At the conclusion of the timeline there is a bibliography listing the sources from which the timeline
was compiled.

Ta aTmein

150 - 280 000,000 years ago graywacke a massive sandstone deposit laid down in a
geosyncline, a massive trough.

140 000.000 years Give or take 20,000,000 years an orogeny, a mountain building period, fold
mountains were formed.

100,000,000 years During this period erosion developed a peneplain, low or rolling relief.

10 or 15, 000, 000 Another but different form of mountain building constituted NE-SW Faults.
Rangituhi / Colonial Knob is one of the remnants of the peneplain as is the
Belmont Plateau and Mont Roberts to the east of Linden and Mount
Kaukau.

1,000,000 years Over the last period the forces of erosion cut away the peneplain the
streams and creeks of the Porirua catchment drain the landscape with the
Porirua Stream beginning near Johnsonville then flowing through Glenside
and Tawa.

1450 Perhaps Ngai Tara occupied the lands of the Porirua Basin.

1650 approximately = Ngati Ira occupied lands of the Porirua Basin.



1820s

1819

1824

1835

1840

1841 5 June

1841 3 June

1841 July

1843 17 June

1846

1846

1846 1 May

1846

1846

Until this time it is generally accepted Ngati Ara were the most recent
inhabitants of Te Whanganui a Tara and its environs.

Incoming lwi from the north began to disturb the Ngati Ara.

The Battle of Waiorua saw the confederation of Te Rauparaha’s Ngati Toa
consolidate dominance in the area from north of Kapiti to the top of the
South Island.

Geordie (Joseph) Thoms established at Porirua which he called Paremata,
after Parramatta in Sydney, close to where the Barracks were built in the
1840s. There would be multiple stations on Kapiti Island, one on Mana
Island, and one at Te Korohiwa (Titahi Bay)

Ngati Toa lived in Porirua, Kapiti and Mana Islands, the Kapiti Coast and
used the resources of the Ohariu, Heretaunga (Hutt Valley). They had
access to Wellington by a track from Porirua.

The New Zealand Gazette announced the road from Kaiwharawhara to
Porirua is completed.

The selection for New Zealand Company Porirua sections took place
before Captain W Mein Smith

Several bridges on the Porirua Road were destroyed and some trees felled
across the Road by Maori.

The Wairau Incident in Marlborough caused panic in Wellington and
environs among the settlers.

About this time Joseph Angell who lived in a hut near the original Methodist
Church, rode round the district being the original postman in Tawa. This
same man on 26 July was posted in the Provincial Gazette as on 10 April
1855 as being appointed special Constable for the Porirua Road.

Governor George Grey decided a Military Road was needed to give
soldiers a swift way of moving to Porirua where a military barracks was to
be built.

Captain A. H. Russell of the British 58th Regiment commanded the building
of the Military Road from the southern end at Hawkrey (Johnsonville) to the
northern end near the mouth of the Kenepuru Stream.

McCoys Stockade Built on Section 36 on the eastern side of the Porirua
Road on the left bank of the Kenepuru (now Porirua) Stream just below
confluence with the Takapu Stream. It was named after Lieutenant R.
McCoy of the 65th Regiment.

Leigh’s Stockade constructed just north of today’s Main Road and Oxford



Street

1840s

1850

1850s

1850s

1850s

1854

1856 30 June

1858

1859 26 September

1860 1 January

1860s

1860s

1861 16 December

1866 July

intersection, it was where the main Mexted Building. It was named after
Lieutenant. Charles E. Leigh of the 99th regiment.

Mexteds and Walls began farming in the 1840s

Methodist Church missioned by Mr Green and Sabbath services were
established.

Hooks, Greers, Taylors and Earps began farming in the 1850s.

The Bucket Tree planted on William Earp’s Boscobel Farm, the date not
exact.

28 August  Some settlers were calling the area Tawa Flat the land
officially being called The Porirua Road. John Woodman probably made the
first official name of Tawa Flat when he used it as the official address for
the Electoral Roll for the Wellington Country District published in the
Wellington Official Gazette 0f 28 August 1854.

Primitive Methodist church built.

Elsdon Best was born on his parents farm Grasslees occupied by
Grasslees Reserve, Tawa Intermediate and Tawa College.

The New Zealand Company dissolved.

There was a public meeting and Nathaniel Bartlett offered to lease a
quarter acre of his property for fourteen years at a peppercorn rental as the
location for a school. This was on the south western corner of section 44.

The Tawa Flat Common School was opened.

Browns, Allens, Duncans and Mitchells began farming in the valley,
Morgans and Woodmans in Takapu in the mid 1860s.

A Gospel Hall built on a corner of Section 35 the services conducted by J.
G. Deck, a preacher from Nelson.

E.G. Wakefield gifted a small part of one of his 100 acre blocks of land 44
yards by 27.5 yards to the Anglican Church for religious, educational and
charitable purposes. After Wakefield’s death the remainder of Section 52
was sold for 300 pounds to Charles Duncan who called his farm Linden
Vale.

St. Peter’s opened for services, the Rev. Thomas Francourt was licensed
on 8 February to the Cure Of Souls in the district of Porirua and Karori
which included Tawa.



1863 25 April

1865 February

1869

1870s

1875 4 July

1876 November

1877 25 June

1881 31 January

1883 19 November

1876

1883. 15 December

1885
1886 November

1890s

1894 16 January

A cricket match took place at Mr Mitchell’s Motukaraka between the eleven
of the Tawa Flat Club, most of whom had not played cricket before and the
eleven of the Pauatahanui Cub. The result Tawa 126 beat Pauatahanui 95.

The Anglican Diocese committed to building a small church that was called
St Peter’s. Besides the church was a small cemetery.

25 August  James Taylor made application for registration of the Tawa
Flat Luck’s All Gold Mining Company (Registered) under the provisions of
the Mining Companies Limited Liability Act 1865.

Tremewans and Benson arrived in Tawa, Crowes in Takapu in 1872.

Death of Richard Spicer aged 21, son of Elizabeth Wilmshurst who
came to Wellington May 1841. Elizabeth was first married to Alfred
Spicer and then George Mexted.

With the abolition of the provinces Tawa Flat became part of the Hultt
County.

Death of Joseph Bartlett aged 34 by cutting his own throat. The fifth
of six children of Nathaniel and Sarah Bartlett who arrived in
Wellington on the Cliffon They bought Section 64 and built the
homestead now an historic place in Tawa.

The Tawa Cricket Club was founded with Mr. Taylor elected president.
The Wellington and Manawatu Railway Company Contract No.8 for
construction of the line from Johnsonville to Porirua was let to Mr. Danaker.

The track was laid through Tawa in 1884 - 1885.

With the abolition of the provinces Tawa Flat became part of the Hutt
County.

Death of Catherine Priscilla May, aged 11 months, buried in the
Tawa Flat Cemetery, presumably part of the extended family of Eli
and Elizabeth (nee Mitchell) Allen.

21 September First train ran to Paremata.
The entire rail route to Palmerston North completed.

Hyde, Benson, Ryan and Salmon arrived in the 1890s.

Death of Henry Irvine Wall aged 14, son of Anthony and Susannah
Wall arrived in Wellington May 1841 with their five children. After



1897 July

1900 30 October

1901

1902 8 February

1902 23 November

1906

1906

1906 - 1907

1907

1915 6 April

1916

1917 1 June

1918 6 January

1918 15 July

settling at Halfway (Glenside) they bought section 56, Brailsford,
opposite 34 Kenepuru.

Takapu School opened with 17 children; it closed in May 1924.

Denis Joseph Ryan aged 21, died after being seriously wounded in the
South African War, he died only four days after disembarking from the S.S.
Tokomaru.

Tawa Flat’s population was 151.

Lawerence Walsh aged 23, a Mounted Rifleman in the South African War,
died on the high veldt at Wakkerstroom. He is buried there.

After St Peter’'s Church was shifted to a site in Porirua it opened for worship
renamed St Anne’s.

Tawa Flat’s population was114.

Five trains per day left Tawa Flat for Wellington and four came from
Wellington to Tawa.

Four sets of investors invested in four separate subdivisions in the Tawa
Valley. In the two years 429 sections were made available and the section
sizes and street patterns of central Tawa and Linden were established. Few
sections were sold.

The Hutt County Ridings of Makara and Porirua were combined to form the
Makara County one of the Councillors being elected from Tawa.

William Edward Earp aged 22, died probably on Walker’s Ridge Gallipoli
his body not recovered, he is commemorated on the Lone Pine Memorial.

75 years after European settlement the heavy bush had largely gone.

Private Alfred Percival Crowe died aged 24 two months into the voyage on
the S.S. Corinthic to England of appendicitis and or peritonitis of some
duration.

William James Clachan aged 26, schoolteacher at Takapu School killed
fighting Colonel Lettow - Vorbeck’s German Army at Luambala Portuguese
Mozambique.

Stewart Henry Nairn aged 41, killed two months after arriving in France
south-east of Hebuterne, he now lies in the Gommecourt British Cemetery
No 2, Hebuterne I, Row B, Grave 27.



1918 ! September

1920s

1920s

1920s Early

1921

1926

1928

1928-1938

1929 - 1930s

1930s

1930s

1931

1931

Thomas Francis Ryan, the brother of Dennis mortally wounded in the South
African War, killed at Frémicourt, now lies in the Bancourt British Cemetery,
in Plot 1, Row G Grave 16.

Mary Cuttle remembered that at Tawa School a boy would ring the bell and
our shoes and nails would be inspected by the teacher and then we
marched into school. The girls sat at the front of the class and the boys at
the back.

The Bull and Bush, a farmhouse converted to tearooms, was available to
the Plunket and Women'’s Institute. Mr Leigh Hunt, the owner, allowed the
district to use the rooms. The Bull and Bush is now located on Rowells
Road Glenside . It is now used as a home.

Wilf and Stephen Mexted had purchased section 43, 45, 46 and used part
section 24. For a few years they rented out this land for an 18 hole golf
course. It was bounded north and south by today’s Grasslees Reserve and
Tawa School and in the west by the start of Lyndhurst Road and Lincoln
Avenue. The Bartlett house was its clubhouse.

Tawa Flat’s population was 224
Tawa Flat’s population was 226.
The Tawa Flat Sub-Branch of the Plunket Society was formed.

A government decision to build a rail deviation prompted subdivisions by
Dunbar Sloan, 1928 and 1930, Tawa Flat Gardens, 1929, and Tawa
Downs, 1938.

The Wall Street Crash and the Great Depression resulted in a lack of sales
of sections.

Mary Leggett, nee Julius, and her sisters never had shoes and going
through the frost in winter their feet would be frozen.

There was a swimming hole behind where the shops now are in Collins
Avenue. Jessica Pupich remembered the first bus to Wellington was run by
Dick Moult from Titahi Bay, It was not flash,. People came by train from
Wellington to play golf at the weekend. They walked from the railway
station, over a style, through paddocks to the golf house, she helped her
mother do the catering for golfers.

Tawa Tennis Club formed playing first at Tawa Flat School, then on the
Nairn’s farm at Takapu and then on Court Road.

In the semi-rural area of Linden houses were beginning to be built. Mr Hook
had a butchery business and used to buy bullocks and let them graze on
the hills until it came time to kill them in his slaughter house in Collins
Avenue.



1932

1933

1933

1935

1937

1937

1939

1939

1940

December

22 July

20 June

20 June

Wilf Mexted

June

29 February

1940 24 July

1940s - 1950s

1940s early
1941
1941 25 May

The Tawa Country Women'’s Institute was established.

Bryan Scott living as a child in Collins Avenue had an outside toilet, a
chemical toilet, one step better than a ‘long drop’.

The opening of the Tawa Flat Hall. Among its uses it was used for showing
films using a drop down screen and forms for seats.

Trains first ran on the Tawa Deviation that included a bridge over
Ngauranga Gorge and two tunnels that shortened the trip to Tawa by four
kilometres.

Traffic over the hill from Johnsonville to Tawa ended.

The new station at Tawa Flat came into use a few hundred meters from the
1885 station. It encouraged the growth of the shopping centre on the south
east corner of Main Road and Oxford Street.

The Reserve named after him, the original 1.6 ha was donated by Wilf
Mexted. He had built his farmhouse in what later became 8 Rewa Terrace.
Wilf was a great grandson of George Mexted who came on the ship Lord
William Bentinck in 1841. He had farmed in Johnsonville before farming in
Takapu Road.

The Brethren began services at Tawa Flat meeting in the Town Hall until
1942 when the Gospel Hall was erected in Elna Place.

Horace Arthur Trenchard aged 27, was on a night flying exercise when he
crashed and died. He lies near Duxford at the Church of Saints Mary and
Andrew built originally in the 11th century Row C, Grave 4. His father had
died when he was just over six, months after marrying Mary Cecilia
Hutchinson in 1911, his mother twice grieved.

Electric locomotives were introduced on the suburban service.

On the main Road shops were built: Sunshine Dairy, Nan’s Dairy, Rolston’s
Hardware, a small Self Help Co-op, the accounting office of Alan Turner,
Fowler’s Chemist, Dr. Brian Kelly’s surgery. The Bank of Australasia (later
ANZ) and Kirby’s Garage, later Kelly’s and then the Chemist.

Boy Scouts began in Tawa.

The Linden Ladies Social Club started in Mrs Taylor's home the number
being limited to around 35 with a big waiting list.

Milton Francis Mexted aged 34, killed in the Battle of Crete probably he
died of wounds as a prisoner of war



1941

1942

1943

1943

1943

1943

1944

1946

1945

1947

1947

1948

1948

14 February

2 March

3 December

21 August

Census

9 March

An ammunition bunker for the United States Marines was established at
Takapu Road.

Frederick Burns Richardson aged 21, died on a training flight as co-pilot on
a Wellington bomber and was buried at Brookwood Military Cemetery, 30
miles west of London his headstone is on Grave No. 9 in Plot 2, Row A

The Tawa Returned Services Association was formed. Its hall was opened
in 1957.

Rupert Sutton Whitcombe aged 23 the Wireless Operator / Air Gunner on
Lancaster iii ED423 VN-N of 50 Squadron bombing Berlin but then crashed
or was shot down at the centre of Rotterdam. His remains are in Rotterdam
(Crooswijk) General Cemetery Plott LL, Row 2, Grave 31.

Only the Main Road, Beauchamp Street and Finlay Street were sealed with
three other streets having some tarmac.

Selwyn Lloyd Hyde aged 29, killed in a battle in Italy advancing towards
Orsogna via the Roman Road and the Lanciano - Orsogna Road. He now
lies in the Sangro River War Cemetery, in Plot 9, Row C Grave 36.

Ngata Bertram Walker aged 22 A veteran of the Battle of the River Plate
aboard the Achilles was seconded to the Royal Navy on HMS Orchis, a
Flower class corvette, the ship was supporting post D Day operations when
it hit a mine and beached on Juno Beach but Ngata’s body was never
recovered.

Tawa Rugby Football Club was founded and based at Lyndhurst Park.

Tawa Flat’s population was 598 with 273 more living in the locality of
Linden. 109 lived in the locality of Takapu including inmates and staff of
Arohata Borstal built in 1944,

Tawa Cricket Club founded and based at Linden.

Wilf Mexted sold 23 acres in two lots to Superior Bricks Ltd., the managing
director being Mr Todd. They did not manufacture bricks but did glazed
earthenware pipes. It was supplied clay by C C Mexted who obtained it
from farms near Plimmerton and the Haywards area. Hume Industries Ltd.,
later called Ceramic Pipes Wellington Ltd., later occupied the site until the
1980s.

The first Tawa Flat Baptist Fellowship was held.
The first of three industrial zones owned by Angus Wells Associates was

sold to Armstrongs who added an engineering arm and for much of the
1950s met the needs of Tawa Flat builders.



1949

1950 23 December

1951 Census

1951

1951 5 June

1952

1952 20 September

Electric units began running on the line. Tawa Flat was now only around 20
minutes by unit from Wellington. The Tawa Valley was now an attractive
residence for Wellington City workers.

The short bit of motorway, the first built in New Zealand, between
Johnsonville and Tawa opened.

Tawa Flat, Takapu locality and Glenside population had risen 147% to
2740.

Methodist Church St. Stephens began building on a new site.

The first meeting of Tawa Flat and Linden Town District Board met in the
Tawa Flat Fire Station.

Tawa Hockey Club founded sharing Linden Park clubrooms with cricket.

The Minister of Education, R. M. Algie opened Linden School the final

impetus for the school was that Linden pupils were being kept home from Tawa Flat School, rebuilt

1952 18 October

1953 31 October

1953 14 November

1954 7 February

1954

1950s mid

1954 February

1950s

in 1941, where a marquee was used for teaching as there were not enough
classrooms.

The Foundation Stone of the Baptist Church was laid. The Baptist Hall was
completed on 2 May 1953.

After much lobbying by the Town Board the electorate of Tawa Flat chose
the Borough of Tawa its first Mayor, George Turkington, and Council
Mervyn Davidson, Percy Clark, Mervyn Kemp, Howard Leadly, Arthur
Carman, Arthur Cornish, Hec Wotton, and Val de Bernardo.

St Stephens Methodist Church opened costing 450 pounds built with
voluntary Labour the women providing morning tea for working bees.

Lieutenant Gordon Smith held the first Salvation Army meeting in the Tawa
Flat School.

Tawa Kindergarten opened on part of Coronation Park in Oxford Street
after three years of fundraising by a committee. It was required by the
government to fund a third of the cost, 3000 pounds. Marie Oliver, Essie
McPherson, Con Harris. Merv Kemp, Ron Holmes and Graham Mexted
were on the committee.

Boy’s Brigade, Life Boys and Girl's Brigade established in Tawa.

Services commenced for the Apostolic Church on a site Mr Scott erected
on his property for the Church.

Late and early 60s Larsen Crescent developed.

10



1955 29 June

1955 12 November

1957

1958

1958 - 60

1959 23 February

1959

1959

1960

1960

1960 Early 60s

1961 1 February

1961

1960s

1962 n6 November

St. Christophers was moved from a site on Lyndhurst Road and Ngatitoa
Street, to its site on Main Rd. and Lyndhurst Rd.

St. Peter’s Church Foundation Stone was laid.

Tawa RSA Badminton Club formed and played in the newly built RSA Hall
in Oxford Street.

The Tawa Borough Council purchased the remaining part of section 48 that
had been farmed by William Best from 1856 - 1865. He had named it
Grasslees after a farm of that name the Bests had near the village of
Elsdon in Northumberland. In 1937 48 acres were sold to a local farmer
and 26 acres reserved for an intermediate and secondary school.

Northern Linden (Bell Block) developed.

After voting the names of Tawanui combining Tawa and Ranui was rejected
in favour of Tawa and the council was from then called the Tawa Borough
Council.

Water and sewerage was finally laid on to houses in the district.

A Tawa-Linden Jaycee (Junior Chamber of Commerce) had its first
meeting.

Saint Francis Xavier School was opened. Sister Jean Marie of the Brigidine
Order was its first principal. It was on eight acres of the original New
Zealand Company section 38, the rest having been sold to the Tawa
Development Corporation.

Tawa Services Bowling Club with green and rooms was opened between

the RSA Hall and Main Road. Also opened in 1960 were the Tawa Bowling
Club and Lyndhurst Tennis Club.

Off Victory Crescent developed (Mexted Block) 1960s,

Redwood developed.

On a Wednesday, Tawa College opened for form three pupils with Alan
Mackie as Principal with foundation staff: H G Garratt, A KB MacLean, HC
Wilson, K R Cassells, E B Archibald, M J Jenden, R W Sage, E Henderson,
L Miller.

Tawa Borough population 7204.

The Collins Avenue and Allen Terrace area developed.

Death of Margaret Emma Magill Headmistress of Tawa Flat School,
1933 - 1944 and a woman who contributed greatly to civil society in
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1962 - 65

1963

1964

1965

1965

1966

1966

1966

1966

1968

1970

1970

1971

1971

1972

August

her lifetime, planted the memorial tree recognising the deaths of
Tawa men who died in the service of New Zealand.

500, 000 DC volt transmission line from Benmore to Haywards built with a
small part of it going through Takapu.

Armstrongs was sold to Carter Merchants.
The opening of the interim public library built in Rewa Terrace.

The Tawa Squash Club grew from a promotional committee and within a
few years it had built three courts and adjoining facilities.

Hampton Hill School opened under the principalship of Frank Prankherd.

January EMP Flaws begins his sixteen year time as Principal of
Tawa College. He determines the shape of the school for decades.

Tawa Borough population 9852, plus 66 in the vicinity, Takapu Locality
Redwood School was opened under the principalship of Con Coffey.
The Tawa Lions Club was formed.

By then the whole of the area from east of the Main Road and west of the
stream from Boscobel Lane to Tawa Street was zoned industrial by the
Borough Council as well as a smaller area west of the Main Road between
The Drive and Redwood Avenue. The de Barnado family established a
plumbing and a heating business, later called Heatway then Aquaheat.
Smaller enterprises like Tawa Joinery, Konev a leather goods enterprise,
Boscobel Engineering and Dodd’s Diecasting were also located in this
zone. Hatricks (NZ) established a chemical business, Reem a steel drum
factory and Alexander Cowan’s a stationary factory business, NCR (NZ)
occupied a plant that changed cash registers so they could handle decimal
currency for decimal Currency Day 10 July 1967.

Carter Merchants, later Carter Holts, site was burnt out by the most
devastating fire ever in the European history of Tawa.

The Tawa Rotary Club received its charter.

Tawa Association Football Club and Tawa Softball Club both began using
Redwood Park.

Tawa Borough population 11244

Greenacres School was opened under the principalship of David Swan.
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1973 February

1974 May

1975

1976

1978

1979

1982

1986

1988 3 October

1989

2001

2002

2,000s early

2003 24 January

2004

Tawa Pool opened costing $204,000 about $40,000 being raised by Tawa's
Own Pool Appeal (TOPPA).

The new Tawa Library named after Mervyn Kemp, the long serving mayor,
was opened by the Governor General Sir Denis Blundell.

Tawa Intermediate was opened under the principalship of Maurice Powell.

Tawa’s population was 12,297, a 25% increase since 1966, Linden growing
28% over the decade.

The Tawa Borough Council closed Essex Street between Oxford Street and
the Main Road to enable a central shopping precinct with Woolworths
opening there in 1978 and the adjacent Tawa Plaza was established in
February 1985.

Saint Francis Xavier School was integrated into the State education
system.

28 NovemberArthur Carman died aged 80. A Tawa historian, faithful
Methodist and close to the Society of Friends, sports reporting pioneer,
imprisoned as a pacifist in1941, long-time member of the Hospital Board
and Tawa Borough Council were among his many civic involvements.

Tawa Borough population was 12,263.

The Local Government Commission decree the Borough of Tawa would be
amalgamated with Wellington City,

The Tawa Community Board was set up.

Tawa’s population was 12,552.

Larsen Crescent Reserve. The Wellington City Council acquired the area
with it retaining the part of the bush that was significant because of age,
diversity and species composition. The Larsen brothers who once farmed
the locality were of Scandinavian extraction.

16.4 hectares on the western slopes of the Takapu Valley bequeathed by
Sir Ron Trotter, he had named it Woodburn after the farm near Manaia in
Taranaki owned by his Scottish grandfather, a plantation of pines and the
Takapu Stream also raising memories of Scotland.

Mervyn Kemp died aged 90 after over 60 years of marriage to Nancy who
died in January 2013.

Pikitanga was excavated and reserved as a park and soon after the
playground was developed.
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2006 The Wellington City Council proposed abolishing the Tawa Community
Board sparking opposition from a significant number of Tawa residents.
The Board was not abolished.

2006 May The Wellington City Council at the request of The Tawa Historical Society
approved the name Charles Duncan reserve. Duncan had purchased
section 52 of the Porirua District. Charles was a qualified horticulturist and
called his farm Lindenvale after a favourite site in Kew Gardens.

2014 12 May The opening of Ara Tawa Cycle and Walkway and the upgrade of
Grasslees Reserve.

2017 22 April The Tawa Memorial remembers thirteen men from the Tawa district who
lost their lives over three wars.

2023 10 January  Death of Bruce Murray. A man of many talents including being a New
Zealand cricket player, Principal of Naenae and then Tawa
College,1989 - 2002, great family man and prolific historian of Tawa.
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